
VILLAGE OF DOWNERS GROVE 

ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN REVIEW BOARD 

 

VILLAGE HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

801 BURLINGTON AVENUE 

 

February 15, 2017 

7:00 P.M. 

 

AGENDA 

 

1. Roll Call 

2. Approval of Minutes from the January 18, 2017 meeting 

3. Public Hearing 

a. 17-ADR-0001:  A petition seeking a Historic Landmark Designation for the 

property commonly known as 5099 Fairview Avenue, Downers Grove, IL 

(PINs 09-09-502-002 & -003).  The property is the train station located at 

the intersection of Fairview Avenue and Burlington Avenue.  Village of 

Downers Grove, Petitioner and Owner.   

 

b. 17-ADR-0002:  A petition seeking a Historic Landmark Designation for the 

property commonly known as 4836 Middaugh Avenue, Downers Grove, IL 

(PIN 09-07-211-015).  The property is located at the northwest corner of 

Middaugh Avenue and Franklin Street. Patrick and Christine Sexton, 

Petitioners and Owners. 

 

4. Old Business 

5. New Business 

a. Review Sample of Architectural Style Brochure 

6. Public Comment 

7. Adjournment 

 

THIS TENTATIVE REGULAR AGENDA MAY BE SUBJECT TO CHANGE 
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VILLAGE OF DOWNERS GROVE 

ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN REVIEW BOARD  

VILLAGE HALL - COMMITTEE ROOM 

801 BURLINGTON AVENUE 

 

JANUARY 18, 2017, 7:00 P.M. 

 

 

Chairman Davenport called the January 18, 2017 meeting of the Architectural Design Review 

Board to order at 7:00 p.m. and asked for a roll call:  

 

PRESENT: Chairman Davenport, Ms. Acks, Ms. Chalberg, Ms. Hollweck, Mr. Larson, 

Mr. Lerner, Mr. Riemer 

 

ABSENT: None 

 

STAFF: Senior Planner Rebecca Leitschuh and Planner Swati Pandey 

 

VISITORS: Garian Rondeall, 1620 Chicago Ave., Downers Grove; David and Amy Gassen, 

5320 Benton Ave., Downers Grove; C. Holtzen, 5226 Carpenter St., Downers 

Grove, Shannon Tully, 5413 Main St., Downers Grove; Chris Saricks, 1116 61st 

St., Downers Grove; Tom and Sue Weiler, 709 Maple Ave., Downers Grove; 

Rich Kulovany with Friends of the Edwards House, 6825 Camden, Downers 

Grove and Don Rickard, 4735 Main St., Downers Grove 

 

 

APPROVAL OF OCTOBER 19, 2017 MINUTES 

 

A correction was noted on page 1, under Visitors:  Revise “Charlotte Holton” to read as 

“Charlotte Holtzen”; page 4, third paragraph, delete the words “length of time of time it took” to 

read as “length of time if took.”   

 

MOTION BY MR. RIEMER, SECONDED BY MS. CHALBERG TO APPROVE THE 

OCTOBER 19, 2016 MINUTES, AS CORRECTED.  MOTION CARRIED BY VOICE 

VOTE OF 7-0. 

 

Chairman Davenport swore in those individuals who would speaking on the following public 

hearing.   

 

PUBLIC HEARING 

 

 A. 16-ADR-0010: A petition seeking a Historic Landmark Designation for the 

property commonly known as 4437 Seeley Avenue, Downers Grove, IL (PIN 09-06-405-

018). The property is located on the east side of Seeley Avenue approximately 190 feet 

north of Grant Street.  Arthur and Judith Frigo, Petitioners and Owners.  Planner Swati 

Pandey referenced a plat of survey from 2013 pointing out that the original Pierce Downer home 

was up for landmark criteria discussion but not the east addition of the home which dated from 

1970s/1980s.   She noted that on the east side of the property the original home barely sat back 7 

feet from the west property line, pointing out there was probably was no zoning at that time.  She 
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also noted the angled position of the home to Seeley Avenue.  A historic photo of Pierce Downer 

was shown on the overhead.  Ms. Pandey stated the historic landmark designation of the home 

was being requested due to the historic significance of its first owner who was the first settler of 

the area and founder of the village– Mr. Pierce Downer.  A brief history of Mr. Downer 

followed:  He traveled west from Upstate New York to locate fertile farmland and staked claim 

to 160 acres which eventually became Downers Grove.  He constructed his home on the highest 

point of the land.  Historic photographs from the 1880s showed the Pierce Downer home with a 

western barn-like structure reflecting an open kitchen used to keep the fire away from the main 

house.  A photo from 1905 reflected the main entrance of the home.  A covered entrance to the 

basement was pointed out by staff and still exists today.  Because staff did not believe Seeley 

Avenue was identified during the time of the photograph, some form of a lane was used to 

service the home on the east side that connected to Old Plank Road (now Ogden Avenue) 

traveling eastward.   

 

Ms. Pandey referenced an undated photo, possibly from the early 1900s reflecting the barn-like 

structure.  A 1968 photo of the home was presented which reflected a sidewalk and an address of 

4437 Seeley Avenue.  Another photo of the home appeared to be taken from the southwest and 

reflected the home with an addition on the rear of the home.  A closer picture of the original 

exterior basement entrance was shown.  Ms. Pandey explained that it not only had historic 

significance but also retained the original stone/mortar from when it was constructed.  

 

A 2016 photo of the Pierce Downer home was then shown on the overhead with Ms.  Pandey 

summarizing the historic significance of the home to its original owner, Mr. Pierce Downer, and 

the fact that his photograph sits in the Village Council Chambers and halls of Village Hall.  She 

reiterated the importance of his community leadership and he was the founder and first settler of 

Downers Grove.  Additional photos and research in the commissioners’ packets were referenced.  

 

Ms. Pandey reported the application met all standards for approval – Criteria 12.302.a: the home 

was more than 50 years old (150+); and Criteria 12.302.b:  the structure was owned and/or 

occupied by a person of historic significance to the community – Mr. Pierce Downer, first 

settler/founder of Downers Grove, after whom the village was named.  Based on the above 

findings, staff recommended that the board make a positive recommendation to the village 

council for the landmark status of this significant structure.  

 

Per a question, Ms. Leitschuh explained that the whole property would be landmarked but the 

front façades that face the street are the primary concern when renovations or additions are 

proposed.   The street-facing portion of the addition would have to return to this board for review 

but would not need to meet the same criteria for a Certificate of Appropriateness.  She confirmed 

the additions and other modest changes would mostly be non-contributing elements to the 

application and would fall under administrative approval.   

 

Applicant, Mrs. Judy Frigo, discussed she and her husband purchased the home in 1970 and have 

lived there the longest of any of the owners (46 years), including Mr. Downer.  They wanted to 

see the two-story portion preserved, given all of the changes occurring in the neighborhood.   

 

Mrs. Frigo shared some of the research she did on the home, explaining that Seeley Avenue was 

created around 1927, and, what was the front door on the home was now the back door, and vice 

versa.  She believed that many of the homes, when built, faced east to take advantage of the 

rising sun.  Mr. Frigo went on to describe the location of the first addition of the home and why 
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is was positioned where it was.  The home stayed in the Downer family until 1924 when it was 

sold to the Dubiel family who rented it out during the Depression.  Much of the history about the 

home, Mrs. Frigo stated, came from Mrs. Pauline Wandschneider who the Frigos purchased the 

home from.   

 

Mrs. Frigo indicated the realtor at the time she purchased the home said the home was being sold 

as a “handyman’s special” because the electrical was 60 amps and there were wiring and safety 

issues with the home.  In 1976, after her family had started to grow and her husband wanted a 

garage and she a family room, Mrs. Frigo said she approached an architect and also the village to 

see if they wanted to purchase the home because they had started looking for a new home to 

purchase on Maple Avenue.  She shared that the Quick family in the 1960s had offered the home 

to the village at one point but were turned down and then the Quicks sold it to Rev. and Mrs. 

Kirby Wahl, whom she purchased it from three years later.   

 

Mrs. Frigo recalled that the village visited her property, possibly with members of the historic 

society, who indicated they were interested in a larger structure and land on Maple Avenue.  As a 

result, the Frigos added an addition in 1977 and another one in 1985.  At that time the plumbing 

was updated.  Mrs. Frigo stated the small front windows on the house were not original to the 

home – they were added in the late 1940s by the Quicks.  The Frigos replaced all of the “Quick” 

windows because they were drafty and she tried to use the original six over six window style. 

 

Mr. Frigo stated the home’s siding was painted while their kids were in college and then 

eventually replaced with the Hardi-board 4-inch siding that was down from the 8-inch siding.  

Mrs. Frigo said that in 2008 when the Hardi-board siding was installed they removed all of the 

aluminum siding that had been on the home.  Referring to the photos in the packets, she pointed 

out that members could see the original clapboard siding, cut up, as well as the brown asbestos 

fake brick material.  The roof was also replaced with the four underlying roofs removed.   

 

Other facts that Mrs. Frigo shared included the home was part of the Underground Railroad, the 

Downer family held a family reunion at the property in 1982 during the Sesquincentennial 

celebration, when Mrs. Frigo invited them to her home.  She remarked it was special because the 

last of the Downers family members remembered the home when they were children and orally 

conveyed some of their memories when living there – such as the trees that lined the lane that 

went down to Ogden Avenue – they were the Downer’s (grove) of trees.   

 

Discussing the basement, Mrs. Frigo referenced the photograph she took of the hand-hewn 

timbers that were in the basement, along with the 2015 upgrades.  She stated she had an 

architectural engineer come through the home because she and her husband were very young 

when they purchased the home (22 and 24 years of age, respectively).  She estimated the last set 

of windows she had installed were Pella windows about 3 to 4 years ago when the home was 

resided.   

 

Mrs. Frigo said she and her husband knew the home was historic and said they never tried to 

change or alter the two-story portion, other than replacing furnaces a couple of times, removing 

the oil tanks, and replacing the wiring.  Mr. Frigo stated that the timbers in the basement did start 

to sag and he later found out that the timbers were set on the concrete floor which was added 

later, but there were no footings.  So he said they had an engineering company come in and 

install steel girders, but the original timbers were in place.   
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Mrs. Frigo indicated that school groups do stop by and if they are home they will let them tour 

their home.  She added that in the basement cellar there are meat hooks that exist and she 

explained the challenge of relaying history to the children because so much of history is oral.   

 

She also pointed out that while people claim that her home was built in 1842, Mrs. Frigo pointed 

out that Mr. Downer built the original log cabin in 1832, then the daughter arrived in 1834 to 

help keep the house.  She eventually married another early Downers Grove settler, Jerry Smith, 

and they purchased property and constructed a home at Carpenter and Maple (now gone) from 

land that had been purchased by her brother, Steven, who was the reason why Pierce Downer 

traveled here in the first place.  Apparently Steven was constructing the lighthouse at 

Ft. Dearborn in Chicago, which fell down about three months later, and then he constructed a 

second lighthouse which remained. 

 

Continuing the story, Mrs. Frigo shared that Pierce Downer sent for his wife, Lucy Ann, and 

children, from Upstate New York.  Lucy came down by steamer through the Great Lakes, just as 

Mr. Downer had come, got a horse at the fort and rode the old Indian trail (old Plank 

Road/Ogden Avenue).   As for the 1842 date, Mrs. Frigo stated her mother, an artist, painted a 

sign for the home and put “1842” on the sign, but Mrs. Frigo said it could have been constructed 

earlier.  However, she stated she knew the home was constructed by 1844 because the original 

map showed the home as a log cabin but by 1844 it showed the home as a two-story clapboard 

house.  The sign has since been removed.   

 

Additional stories that unfolded by Mrs. Frigo included the time when Ms. Wandschneider and 

the historical society had a meeting at her home in the 1970s and pointed out that the basement 

was very tall, which led to remarks that Mr. Downer was a tall man (6-foot, 4-inches).  More 

stories followed about the home, which were the same stories that Mrs. Frigo had heard when the 

Downer descendants had came to her home, such as Mr. Downer passing the day after his wife 

passed and the fact that the Downers could not be buried at the Main Street Cemetery because St. 

Joseph’s Creek had flooded and the carriages could not transport them and so they were buried at 

the family farm on Linscott Avenue.   

 

Other stories followed regarding how Mr. Downer passed – supposedly died while digging her 

grave or died of the same disease as the wife.  As it turns out, Mrs. Frigo shared that an outbreak 

of influenza occurred in the 1860s so Mrs. Frigo assumed they both succumbed to the same 

infectious disease.   

 

In closing her presentation, Mrs. Frigo commented on all the various locations where there are 

photographs of her home – the Village Hall, Fry’s Electronics, and sometimes in the newspaper.  

She hoped this board would landmark their home because many of the surrounding homes were 

much larger now and developers were contacting them about selling their property.  She stated 

there was no interest in selling.  Her concern was that after she and her husband are gone there 

will be no control over the property, which was why they were petitioning this board for 

landmarking.     

 

Positive comments follow regarding the petitioner’s application and the research done on the 

home over the years.  Mrs. Frigo added that she appreciated the “prodding” she and her husband 

received from a couple of the board members, as well as staff, for bringing their application 

forward.  Mr. Frigo also acknowledged Mr. Mark Reagan, who helped him get the ball rolling on 

this petition.   
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As another comment, Mrs. Frigo recalled that some of the Downer descendants spoke about a 

library in the home, which was a few books at the top of the stairs.  She relayed it was the master 

bedroom closet and it would have been considered a large library back in the day.   

 

Other facts about the home:  the first addition was added by the Frigos; the second addition was 

done by Steven Wendell of A.W. Wendell & Sons who lived three doors north of them.    

 

Board comments were positive and many appreciated the petitioners’ stewardship of the home 

and how the community benefits from it.  

 

Chairman Davenport opened up the meeting to public comment. 

 

Mr. Dave Gassen, 5320 Benton Ave., Downers Grove, strongly supported the petition and said 

his oldest daughter was lucky to go on a field trip and see the Pierce Downer home. 

 

Mr. Rich Kulovany, 6825 Camden Ave., Downers Grove, was so excited to see this petition and 

believed those who set the stage for this application needed to be thanked, i.e., the petitioners, 

Mayor Tully and Mark Reagan.  He shared how he and Amy Gassen were able to tour the home 

and see the interior upgrades to the home.   He described the additions he walked through and the 

fact that it does put away the myth that you cannot add on to such homes when you really can, 

referencing Section 12.302 of the Historic Preservation Landmark ordinance which states the 

proposed landmark  “can be in whole or in part.”   The home was a gift from the Frigos for the 

future generations. 

 

Ms. Amy Gassen, 5320 Benton Ave, Downers Grove, thanked the Frigos for deciding to 

landmark their home and for allowing her and Mr. Kulovany to tour the home.  It was a 

wonderful gift for the entire community.  On a side note, she stated the game show Jeopardy had 

Downers Grove and Pierce Downer as part of their game clue today.   

 

Per a question, Senior Planner, Rebecca Leitschuh, elaborated on what other features could be 

landmarked besides the main structure and the various levels for approval. She explained that 

Section 302 does state “in whole or in part” but that is explaining a property that has additions 

can also be landmarked, not that a portion of the home can be landmarked versus the entire 

home. The entire home is landmarked, additions and original; they just meet different standards 

when reviewed for alterations. 

 

Mr. Gordon Rhondo, 1620 Chicago, Downers Grove, asked if the lot underneath the structure is 

landmarked also wherein the chairman stated it was just the house.   

 

A resident believed the side facade of the home should be preserved because the stone stairs 

were located on the south side which stairs were part of the Underground Railroad during the 

Civil War.   

 

Ms. Leitschuh reiterated that the village’s ordinance only allowed for the landmarking of the 

front façade, and that the stairs continued along the plane of the street-facing facade.   One board 

member also pointed out that zoning protected the sides of the home.  Further discussion on this 

matter followed with Ms. Leitschuh referencing Section 501 and how it addressed the sides of 

structures.  



DRAFT 

ADRB  January 18, 2017 6 

 

Hearing no comments, Chairman Davenport closed the public hearing.   

 

Another board member shared his appreciation of the petition and the stories that unfolded, 

including the story about the well located across the street.   

 

Final comments from Mrs. Frigo included that when the Downer descendants visited in 1982, 

she was told that the original barn that went across Seeley Avenue was used more for cooking, 

and the barns that housed cattle were basically located where Pierce Downer School exists today. 

 

The chairman entertained a motion for approval. 

 

MR. LARSON MADE A MOTION THAT THE ADRB FORWARD A POSITIVE 

RECOMMENDATION TO THE VILLAGE COUNCIL TO RECOMMEND 

HISTORICAL LANDMARK DESIGNATION FOR 4437 SEELEY AVENUE. 

 

MR. RIEMER SECONDED THE MOTION.  ROLL CALL: 

 

AYE: MR. LARSON, MR. REIMER, MS. ACKS, MS. CHALBERG, MS. HOLLWECK, 

 MR. LERNER, CHAIRMAN DAVENPORT 

NAY: NONE 

 

MOTION CARRIED.  VOTE:  7-0 

 

Ms. Leitschuh stated the first reading for the above petition will be on the February 7, 2017 

Council agenda.  

 

OLD BUSINESS 

 

Ms. Leitschuh reported that the second proof of the brochure -- The Downers Grove 

Architectural Styles Guide -- will be provided prior to the next board meeting.  Details followed. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

 

Dave and Amy Gassen, 5320 Benton Ave., Downers Grove provided an update to their 

American Four-Square initiative.  To date, of the 130 identified Foursquare properties existing, 

45 owners have provided their email addresses to them.  Since the last meeting in October, 

Ms. Gassen and her husband have been touring other Foursquare properties and have taken 

photos and sketched floor plans of the homes’ interiors.  An overview of the photos and floor 

plans to date were presented with Ms. Gassen stating their goal is to catalog the layouts and the 

improvements the owners have done.  Most interesting is that Foursquare owners are interested 

in what other Foursquare owners have done to their homes.  Ms. Gassen explained her group is 

also working on an interactive map and an electronic newsletter to keep Foursquare owners 

informed of latest information and location of the homes.   

 

Mr. Rich Kulovany, 6825 Camden, Downers Grove announced that Landmarks Illinois Chicago 

Suburban Preservation Alliance has asked Downers Grove to host a free meeting on March 11, 

2017, 10:30 a.m. at the Avery Coonley School due to its recent landmarking activities.  He 

encouraged the board members to attend.  The meeting will also include a tour of the Avery 
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Coonley School.  Following that, the Illinois Heritage Preservation Agency will hold a 

presentation about the tax freeze program for homeowners as well as commercial building 

owners. 

 

Before closing the meeting, Chairman Davenport welcomed the new board members.  He also 

believed the process of volunteer landmarking of properties was unique in that it normally does 

not occur very often and so he thanked those individuals who were committed in the community.  

He believed that if the board can continue to educate the community and provide incentives for 

landmarking, it was a positive move. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

MR. RIEMER MOVED TO ADJOURN THE MEETING AT 8:17 P.M.   MS. ACKS 

SECONDED THE MOTION.   

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY BY VOICE VOTE OF 7-0. 

 

/s/ Celeste K. Weilandt  

  (As transcribed by MP-3 audio) 

 



VILLAGE OF DOWNERS GROVE 
ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN REVIEW BOARD 

FEBRUARY 15, 2017 AGENDA 

SUBJECT: TYPE: SUBMITTED BY: 

17-ADR-0001 

5099 Fairview Avenue Designation of a Historic Landmark 
Scott Williams 

Planner 

REQUEST 
The Village is seeking a Historic Landmark Designation for the train station located at 5099 Fairview Avenue 

based on the criteria that the property has significant value as part of the historic, heritage, and cultural 

characteristics of the community and is a source of civic pride and identity for the community.   

NOTICE 
The application has been filed in conformance with applicable procedural and public notice requirements. 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

OWNER/: Village of Downers Grove 

APPLICANT 801 Burlington Avenue 

Downers Grove, IL 60515 

PROPERTY INFORMATION 

ARCHITECTURAL STYLE: Cottage 

BUILDING DATE: 1916 

HISTORICAL BUILDING USE: Fairview Train Station 

EXISTING BUILDING USE: Fairview Train Station 

PROPERTY SIZE: 790 square feet  

PIN: 09-09-502-002 & -003 

ANALYSIS 

SUBMITTALS 
This report is based on the following documents, which are on file with the Department of Community 

Development: 

1. Application/Petition for Public Hearing

2. Project Summary

3. Certificate of Acknowledgement Form

4. Historic Landmark Information Form

5. Project Narrative

6. Book Excerpt

7. Newspaper Articles
8. Photographs

9. Fredenhagen Platted Subdivision 
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PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
The Village of Downers Grove is seeking a Historic Landmark Designation for the Fairview train station 

located at 5099 Fairview Avenue under criteria 12.302.B.1 and 12.302.B.6 of the Historic Preservation 

Ordinance.  The station is a notable local landmark due to its function and association with the 

development of Downers Grove.  

 

The Fairview Train Station was constructed in 1916 and was designed and built by the staff of the 

Chicago, Burlington and Quincy Railroad replacing the first station built in 1890.  The railroad impacted 

the development of Downers Grove by bringing residents, supplies, and even the Sears homes.  The area 

north of tracks in close proximity to the train station site was called East Grove and was part of the 

Fredenhagen Subdivision settled by Victor Fredenhagen in the 1850’s.  As one of the first realtors and 

operator of a large diary farm, he offered free rides on the railroad and unlimited milk to attract buyers.  

The original name of “East Grove Station” was changed in 1918 to avoid confusion with the Main Street 

Station.  

 

Towards the end of the 19th century, shifting immigration patterns were reflected in Downers Grove with 

the construction of St. Mary of Gostyn Catholic Church founded by settlers from Gostyn, Poland in 1891.  

For the dedication, two twelve-car trains brought Catholics from Chicago who marched behind a band to 

the church north on Fairview.     

 

The station’s high gambrel roof over the station master’s quarters in the second floor, canopy on the track 

side, and masonry construction was meant to convey a rural image of the town by making the station 

resemble a cottage.  This was in keeping with the community’s image as a healthy alternative from city 

life.  Small weekend-getaway vacation cottages were for sale as an escape for those wishing to enjoy 

parks and trees.       

 

Highlighting the importance of the railroad as the lifeblood of the community is the snowstorm of 1918.  

The entire town was shut-down with deliveries of coal, milk, and mail halted.  Every able-bodied resident 

was pressed into service to clear the railroad and allow for the town to be resupplied.   

 

The station itself has stayed mostly the same except for the canopy extension and interior renovations.  

Up until 1977, Maxine Loftus, a station agent, was living in the second story of the station.  The story of 

her providing cookies and coffee to commuters not only represents the transit gateway aspect of the 

station, but also showcases Downers Grove residents’ sense of community.  Over the years, a small 

commercial area has also developed around the train station and this Fairview Concentrated Business 

District is considered the second downtown of Downers Grove.   

 

COMPLIANCE WITH HISTORIC PRESERVATION ORDINANCE 
Additional information regarding the request is outlined in the attached narrative letter and photographs.  

The Village would like to thank the Friends of the Edwards House and the Downers Grove Historical 

Society for their assistance in preparing this application. 

 

Landmark designations require evaluation based on Section 12.302 of the Historic Preservation 

Ordinance, Landmark Designation Criteria.  Staff finds the request complies with Section 12.302A and 

Section 12.302.B, Landmark Designation Criteria #1 and 6 as described below. 

 

Section 12.302.A. 

The proposed landmark is either over fifty (50) years old; in whole or in part or is under fifty (50) 

years of age and possesses exceptional importance such as might be recognized immediately for its 

reflection of an extraordinary political event or architectural innovation; and  

The train station was constructed 1916.  This standard is met. 
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Section 12.302.B 

That one or more of the following conditions exist: 

1. The property has significant value as part of the historic, heritage or cultural characteristics of 

the community, county, State or Nation; 

The East Grove area of the community would not have developed without the railroad and associated 

train station.  The current train station has served residents and visitors since 1916.  The structure is a 

significant value to the community.  This criteria is met. 

2. The property was owned by a person or persons of historic significance to the community, 

county, State or Nation; 

This criteria does not apply. 

3. The property represents the distinguishing characteristics of an architectural period, style, 

type, method of construction or use of indigenous materials; 

 This criteria does not apply.  

 

4. The property represents notable work of a master builder, designer, architect or artist whose 

individual work has influenced the development of the community, county, State or Nation; 

This criteria does not apply. 

5. An area that has yielded or may be likely to yield, information important in history or 

prehistory. 

This criteria does not apply. 

6. A source of civic pride or identity for the community. 

 The train station is a gateway for the community and the center of our second downtown.  The 

cottage-style appearance is a reminder of Historic Downers Grove bucolic qualities.  It is a source of 

civic pride.  This criteria is met.    

  

7. The property is included in the National Register of Historic Places. 

This criteria does not apply. 

NEIGHBORHOOD COMMENT 
Staff has not received any neighborhood comments regarding the proposal at this time. 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

Staff finds the petition complies with the criteria in Section 12.302 for Landmark Designation. Based on 

the findings above, staff recommends the Architectural Design Review Board make a positive 

recommendation to the Village Council for landmark status of 5099 Fairview Avenue. 

Staff Report Approved By: 
 

 

___________________________ 

Stan Popovich, AICP 

Director of Community Development  

 
SP:sw 

-att 
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VILLAGE OF DOWNERS GROVE 
ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN REVIEW BOARD 

FEBRUARY 15, 2017 AGENDA 
 

 

SUBJECT:                                              TYPE:                                      SUBMITTED BY: 

 

 

17-ADR-0002 

4836 Middaugh Avenue 

 

 

 

Designation of a Historic Landmark 

 
 

Scott Williams 

Planner 

 
REQUEST 
The petitioners are seeking a Historic Landmark Designation for their home at 4836 Middaugh Avenue based on 

the criteria that the property represents the distinguishing characteristics of an architectural style. 

 
NOTICE 
The application has been filed in conformance with applicable procedural and public notice requirements. 

 

GENERAL INFORMATION 
 

OWNER/: Patrick and Chris Gumm Sexton 

APPLICANT 4836 Middaugh Avenue 

 Downers Grove, IL 60515 

 

PROPERTY INFORMATION 
 

ARCHITECTURAL STYLE: Gabled-Ell with Queen Anne Characteristics 

BUILDING DATE:  1893 

HISTORICAL BUILDING USE: Single Family Residence 

EXISTING BUILDING USE: Single Family Residence 

PROPERTY SIZE:  6600 square feet 

PIN:    09-07-211-015  

 

ANALYSIS 
 
SUBMITTALS 
This report is based on the following documents, which are on file with the Department of Community 

Development: 

 

1. Application/Petition for Public Hearing 

2. Project Summary 

3. Plat of Survey 

4. Owner Consent Form 

5. Certificate of Acknowledgement Form 

6. Historic Landmark Information Form 

7. Photographs 

8. House Timeline 

9. Biography 
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PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
The petitioners are seeking a Historic Landmark Designation for their property at 4836 Middaugh Avenue 

under criteria 12.302.B.3 of the Historic Preservation Ordinance: representation of distinguishing 

characteristics of an architectural style.  The two-story Gabled-Ell with Queen Anne characteristics was 

constructed in 1893 and was first occupied by the Chilvers family.  

 

Gabled-Ell houses were a common vernacular building form throughout the mid-to late-1880s and 

features a dominant open gable elevation facing the street.  This form was typically used for working and 

middle-class homes and could feature Greek Revival, Italianate or Queen Anne detailing and 

ornamentation.  Queen Anne characteristics would include: steeply pitched asymmetrical roofs, wood 

clapboard, bandboard or wood trim bargeboards, elaborate porches with spindlework and other 

ornamentation.  The Gabled-Ell also features an entrance porch on one side of the house along the street.  

This building form can mostly be found in E.H. Prince’s Subdivision.  

 

The property at 4836 Middaugh Avenue is on a corner lot with a dominant gable facing each street. The 

projecting L-shaped cross-gables are a distinguishing feature and indicate the footprint of the original 

building.  The wrap-around screened porch is not original (circa 1900) and encloses the wood panel front 

door.  The house is built on a foundation of stone.  All the windows are original and are wood and double 

hung.  Interior features includes the original fireplace with decorative tile.  The flooring and doors are 

also original.  A rear addition constructed circa 1930 does not impact the historic features or integrity of 

this Gabled-Ell.   

 

The Chilvers family lived in the structure for five years.  Mr. Chilvers was on the very first North Side 

Volunteer Fire Department in 1894.  In 1895, he became a Village Trustee who made a motion to replace 

a policeman requesting a pay raise.  Mr. Chilvers also fell victim to a “Gold Finding Machine.”  

 

COMPLIANCE WITH HISTORIC PRESERVATION ORDINANCE 
The petitioner has outlined the request in the attached narrative letter and photographs.  The petitioner 

will further address the proposal and justification to support the requested landmark designation at the 

public hearing.  

 

Landmark designations require evaluation based on Section 12.302 of the Historic Preservation 

Ordinance, Landmark Designation Criteria.  Staff finds the request complies with Section 12.302A and 

Section 12.302.B, as described below. 

 

Section 12.302.A. 

The proposed landmark is either over fifty (50) years old; in whole or in part or is under fifty (50) 

years of age and possesses exceptional importance such as might be recognized immediately for its 

reflection of an extraordinary political event or architectural innovation; and  

The house was constructed in 1893.  This standard is met. 

 

Section 12.302.B 

That one or more of the following conditions exist: 

1. The property has significant value as part of the historic, heritage or cultural characteristics of 

the community, county, State or Nation; 

This criteria does not apply. 

2. The property was owned by a person or persons of historic significance to the community, 

county, State or Nation; 

This criteria does not apply. 
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3. The property represents the distinguishing characteristics of an architectural period, style, 

type, method of construction or use of indigenous materials; 

Staff finds the property represents the distinguishing characteristics of the Gabled-Ell vernacular form 

with Queen Anne features.  These features include cross-gables, original windows, bargeboard, and 

original interior features.  This criteria is met. 

4. The property represents notable work of a master builder, designer, architect or artist whose 

individual work has influenced the development of the community, county, State or Nation; 

 This criteria does not apply. 

 

5. An area that has yielded or may be likely to yield, information important in history or 

prehistory. 

This criteria does not apply. 

6. A source of civic pride or identity for the community. 

This criteria does not apply. 

7. The property is included in the National Register of Historic Places. 

This criteria does not apply. 

NEIGHBORHOOD COMMENT 
Staff has not received any neighborhood comments regarding the proposal at this time. 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

Staff finds the petition complies with the criteria in Section 12.302 for Landmark Designation.  Based on 

the findings above, staff recommends the Architectural Design Review Board make a positive 

recommendation to the Village Council for landmark status of 4836 Middaugh Avenue. 

Staff Report Approved By: 
 

 

___________________________ 

Stan Popovich, AICP 

Director of Community Development  

 
SP:sw 

-att 
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CHILVERS HOUSE TIMELINE 
4836 MIDDAUGH 

88 MIDDAUGH 
 
 
1861 James William Chilvers is born to John and Alice Chilvers of Downers Grove 
(1860 Census) 
 
1870 Is at School in Downers Grove (1870 Census) 
 
1874 Atlas Map of Chilvers Farm 
 
1880 Still with parents at farm (1880 census) 
 
1883 Married Hattie Lucy Derby in Will County (Ancestry.com) 
 
1884 Roy is born at Barbers Corners which is now 53 and Boughton (obituary) 
 
1886 Edith is born 
 
1892 Ella Chilvers (sister in law) buys Lot 10 Block 39 
 
1893 House is built per tax records to James and Hattie Chilvers 
 
1894 J. Chilvers is serving on first northside fire fighters (Downers Grove 1832-
1982) 
 
1895 May 6, he is voted in as Village Trustee (Per Village of Downers Grove Clerk 
Alice Holdon,) 
 
Policeman Hoffert decided in 1895 that he needed a raise in pay since several of the 
merchants had stopped paying their subscription.  He presented his request to the 
Village Board and was shocked when Mr. Chilvers made a motion which was 
seconded by Mr. Moss that Officer Hoffert be discharged if his salary was insufficient 
and another officer be employed in his place.  After a little thought he withdrew his 
application for salary increase. (Page 242 Downers Grove 1832-1982) 
 
1895 Says he has a new store on Main Street (1895 Republican Newspaper) 
 
1898 Middaugh home is sold to C. Arthur Brown (owned 3 months sold to Minnie 
Lundell whom did not live there.  Lundells lived in Ravenswood area per 
ancestry.com  Husband died in 1903) 
 
1900 Chilvers is living on Saratoga occupation a merchant. (1900 Census) 



 
1903 Home is bought buy Albert Winter whom is said tohave helped build train 
depot.  He is listed as a railroad contractor.  Letters from family members acclaim to 
this as well.  We believe Winter rented the home from 1898-1903.  We speculate 
this due to the fact that family remembers them being there pre 1900. 
 
1910-1930 James Chilvers lived in Downers Grove until his death in 1930 from 
Bright’s Disease. 
 
1910-1940 Albert Winter and his family lived at 4836 Middaugh until the death of 
his wife in 1944.  The family resided in the home for 46 years.  Albert winter is a 
relation to Jack Winter of the Reporter.  Both his sons served in WWI. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CHILVERS HOUSE 
 
In 1861 James William Chilvers was born to John and Alice Chilvers whom came to 
Downers Grove from Sofolk, England around 1850.  Their son John was born in 
Downers Grove in 1859.  The Chilvers family farm was located south of downtown 
in Downers Grove Township.  In 1883, James married Hattie Lucy Derby in Will 
County. 
 
The couple lived in Barber’s Corners (Route 53 and Boughton) where their children 
were born.  They moved into the downtown area in 1892.  They built their home at 
4836 Middaugh and remained there until 1898.  
 
 In 1894, James joined the first ever volunteer Fire Fighters  Department.  On May 6, 
1895 he was sworn in as a Village Trustee.  A story goes that Officer Hoffert decided 
that he needed a pay raise since several merchants stopped paying their 
subscription.  Mr Chilvers said he could resign his position instead.  Officer Hoffert 
declined his pay raise. 
 
It was also in 1895 that Mr. Chilvers was in the Republican newspaper.  He helped 
test a so called “gold finder”  He hid $250 in gold in his store and low and behold the 
bottle with an attached string found the gold “speedily”.  During this time he owned 
a business on Main Street . 
 
Mr. Chilvers was mainly a contractor for buildings.  He built  various homes in 
Downers Grove.  He lived here until his death in 1930 from Brights Disease. 
 
 
 



 



 



Original House: 

 

 

Side-by-Side Comparison 
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DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT 

MEMO 
 

To: Architectural Design Review Board 

From: Stan Popovich, AICP 

Director of Community Development 

Subject: Architectural Styles Brochure 

Date: February 15, 2017 

 
In late 2016, the Village received a Certified Local Government (CLG) Grant to prepare four historic 

preservation brochures.  The four brochures are: 

 

 Historic Preservation How-To 

 Downers Grove Architectural Style Guide 

 Sears Home Walking Tour 

 Downtown Downers Grove Walking Tour 

 

The Village has completed the ‘How To’ brochure and is currently working on the Architectural Style Guide.  

Information on the Architectural Style Guide is provided to the ADRB for their review and comment.  The 

following items are attached: 

 

 Draft layout of the Architectural Style Guide – This three page document shows the brochure cover, 

the introductory page and a sample layout for the architectural styles.   

 

 Text document of the Architectural Style Guide – This text was taken and adopted from the 2013 

Historic Building Survey. 

 

 

 



�We shape our buildings; thereafter they shape us.�

� Winston Churchill

What is
YOUR HOME?
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Cover Page  
Title – Architectural Styles 

Subtitle – What is your home 

Picture(s) – Possibly four pictures of distinctly different homes in  

VODG logo (attached to email) 

Quote - “We shape our buildings; thereafter they shape us.” – Winston Churchill   (Or something great 
about architecture, home, or historic preservation) 

 

Page 1 
Title – Styles included in this brochure (23 different pages of styles) 

Architectural Style: “high-style” that exhibits defined characteristics related to is overall exterior design, 
materials use, articulation, and other architectural features. 

Greek Revival (1830s-1870s) – Page __ 

Gothic Revival (1840s-1870s) – Page __ 

Italianate (1840s – 1880s) – Page ___ 

Second Empire (1850s – 1880s) – Page ____ 

Queen Anne (1880s – 1900s) – Page ___ 

Colonial Revival (1880s – 1950s) – Page ___ 

Classical Revival (1895 – 1950s) – Page ___ 

Tudor Revival (1890s – 1940s) – Page __ 

French Eclectic (1910s – 1945) – Page ___ 

Craftsman (1900s – 1920s) – Page __ 

Prairie (1900s – 1920s) – Page __ 

Chicago Bungalow (1907-1930s) – Page __ 

Spanish Revival (1920s – 1940s) – Page __ 

Minimal Traditional (1930s – 1940s) – Page __ 

International Style (1930s – 1960s) – Page __ 

Mid-Century Modern (1940s – 1960s) – Page __ 

Late Modern Eclectic (1970s – Present) – Page __ 

Neo Revival (1980s – Present) – Page __ 

 



Vernacular Building Forms: Defined by the overall massing and shape, interior space configuration and 
function, and materials. 

Gable-Front and Gabled-Ell (1850s-1920s) – Page __ 

Foursquare (1890s-1920s) – Page __ 

Bungalow (1905 – 1930) – Page __ 

Ranch (1930s – 1970s) – Page __ 

Split Level (1950s – 1970s) – Page __ 

 

Page 2 
This brochure is intended to serve two purposes: 

 A resource for property owners potentially interested in landmarking their property; and 

 A resource for people who just love architecture and history. 

This brochure includes: 

 Architectural Features 101 (diagrams identifying common building elements) 

 Typical roof types 

 Typical window types 

 19 architectural style examples (includes picture of Downers Grove home, historical description, 
diagram of unique architectural features) 

 5 vernacular form examples (includes picture of Downers Grove home, historical description, 
diagram of unique architectural features) 

Page 3-4 Architecture 101  
 

 



 

 

 

 



 
 
Page 5- Featured Style  
Title: Greek Revival 

Subtitle: 1830s – 1870s 

Description:  

Nationally, Greek Revival was the dominant domestic architectural style during the middle of the 19th 
century, beginning along the eastern seaboard and migrating to the west.  Greek Revival was one of the 
earliest architectural styles to be used for residential buildings in the Chicago area as the increasing 
prevalence of pattern books and carpenter guides popularized the style. Typical attributes and 
characteristics include:  

•  a rectangular and gable-fronted building form, 
•  one or two stories in height, 
•  a hipped roof with cornice lines emphasizing a band of trim, and 
•  double-hung, multi-paned windows.  
 

Greek Revivals were usually constructed with clapboard siding and sometimes with decorative 
pediments and crown moldings over doors and windows. Its most particular architectural feature is the 
gable cornice returns that mimic a triangular pediment in Classical Greek architecture.  

 

 

Page 6- Featured Style  
 
Title: Gothic Revival 

Subtitle: 1840s – 1870s 

Description:  

During the early to mid-1800s, the preference for the “picturesque” in domestic architecture gave rise 
to the Gothic Revival style, a style that was first practiced in England during the late 1700s. Gothic 
Revival is considered mainly a rural style and more compatible with rural landscapes since its emphasis 
on multiple gables and wide porches did not lend itself to narrow lots in urban environments. 

Typical features of a Gothic Revival home include: 

•  front gabled or asymmetrical building form,  
•  gables with decorative cross-bracing and vergeboard, and  
•  pointed arch or lancet windows.  
 

Gothic Revivals in rural environments were most often constructed in wood clapboard, giving rise to the 
“Carpenter Gothic” vernacular version of the style.  

 



Page 7- Featured Style  
 

Title: Italianate  

Subtitle: 1840s – 1880s 

Description:  

Italianate homes first began to appear in most eastern and Midwestern states in the 1840s and soon 
surpassed the Gothic Revival as the dominant architectural style, especially in its  detached single family  
home variant.  The style declined in popularity after the financial panic of 1873 and the subsequent 
depression when home building slowed and a new style, the Queen Anne, became the dominant 
residential architectural style.  
 
Italianate homes are typically constructed in wood clapboard or masonry, two to three stories in 
height, and L-shaped, asymmetrical or gable-fronted in form. Its most recognizable features include: 
 

•   an elaborate roof-line cornice with decorative brackets,  
•   tall, narrow double-hung windows that are often arched at the top and crowned with a 
hood mold made of brick or stone,  
•  roofs that are usually hipped and low-pitched, and 
•   partial, full-front or wrap-around porches with ornate railings and turned columns. 
 

 

Page 8- Featured Style  
Title: Second Empire 

Subtitle: 1850s – 1880s 

Description:  

Second Empire is the first of the Victorian Era styles that would prevail in American domestic 
architecture for much of the later part of the 1800s as industrialization and the growth of the railroads 
would dramatically change home design and production. Second Empire homes became popular 
throughout most of the eastern and Midwestern United States and were often considered a “modern” 
alternative to the picturesque styles. 

The style’s most distinctive feature is its mansard roof with pedimented dormers.  Typical features 
include: 

•  rectangular or asymmetrical in building form,  
•  masonry exterior that incorporates a central tower topped with a mansard roof,  
•  narrow double-hung windows, window hoods, decorative cornice line brackets, and  
•  full width or wrap-around porches.  
 

Page 9 & 10 - Featured Style  
Title: Queen Anne 

Subtitle: 1880s – 1900s 



Description:  

Queen Anne prevailed perhaps as the most dominant Victorian domestic architectural style during the 
last two decades of the 19th Century.  The style was first practiced during the mid to late 1800s by a 
group of English architects.  The first American interpretations of the Queen Anne style along the 
eastern seaboard were later popularized by the proliferation of pattern books and the ready 
manufacture and distribution of pre-cut materials and architectural features.  

In the Midwest, the majority of Queen Anne homes: 
 

•  were constructed in wood clapboard and wood shingles in the upper floors, 
•  used wide bandboards or wood trim to mark the change in materials from wood clapboard to 
wood shingles, and 
•  were often asymmetrical buildings with steeply pitched, cross-gabled roofs.  
 

Some Queen Annes have cylinder tower bays that rise through the roof line, recessed balconies, and 
chimneys with corbelled masonry patterns.  One of the most notable features is the elaborate porches 
with elaborate spindlework, balusters and pediments with stick or shingle work.  

Page 11 - Featured Style  
Title: Colonial Revival 

Subtitle: 1880s – 1950s 

Description:  

The Colonial Revival style is often believed to have started after the 1876 Philadelphia Centennial 
Exhibition where a “colonial kitchen,” replete with a spinning wheel, was reconstructed. The New York 
firm of McKim, Mead, White and Bigelow are often considered the first important practitioners of the 
style with their Appleton House in Lennox, Massachusetts.   

The most common architectural features of Colonial Revival homes include: 

•  columned entry porches;  
• entry doors with transoms, sidelights, and elaborate surrounds;  
• symmetrical building forms; 
•  hipped roofs; and,  
• double-hung, multi-paned windows that are often paired together.  
 

In Downers Grove, Colonial Revival homes are often two and-a-half floors in height, constructed in brick 
or stone masonry, and with roof materials consisting of asphalt shingles. In addition, many homes have 
one-story enclosed side wings that usually fronted the street if the home was oriented to the side yard. 
A subtype, is the Dutch Colonial with gambrel roofs and long front dormers. 

Page 12 - Featured Style  
Title: Classical Revival 

Subtitle: 1895 – 1950s 

Description:  



The Chicago World’s Columbian Exposition in 1893 revived interest in Classical architecture as the Fair’s 
planners mandated a classical theme be used in all buildings constructed for the Fair. From the mid-
1890s to the middle of the 20th Century, Classical Revival became a popular style for both commercial 
and residential buildings.  Signature features of Classical Revival homes are: 

•  full height porches supported by columns with Corinthian or Ionic capitals, and 
• topped with a pedimented gable.  
 

These homes are often: 
•  two and-a-half stories in height, 
•  rectangular and symmetrical in form, and  
• constructed in stone or brick that was often painted white.  
 

A variant of Classical Revival is the Beaux Arts style, which was popular in the United States from the 
mid-1880s to the 1930s, and often used for monumental commercial buildings such as banks and office 
edifices.  Beaux Arts buildings share many of the same features and elements of Classical Revival 
buildings but they may also incorporate balustrades at the roof line, elaborate window surrounds and 
crowns, pilasters and floral patterns and shield as decorative elements.  

 
Page 13 - Featured Style  
Title: Tudor Revival 

Subtitle: 1890s – 1940s 

 

Description:  

Tudor Revival is based on late Medieval English prototypes from grand manors to thatched roof cottages 
and was popularized in the United States during the same period as the Colonial Revival prior to World 
War II.  The Tudor Revival style features: 

•  steeply pitched roofs,  
• a dominant front gable,  
• half-timbering,  
• masonry walls,  
• massive chimneys, and  
• narrow casement windows. 

 
Page 14 - Featured Style  
Title: French Eclectic 

Subtitle: 1910s - 1945 

Description:  

Like Tudor Revival, French Eclectic or French country house architecture became a popular style during 
the 1920s, 30s and 40s. French Eclectic became popular in the United States as soldiers returned from 
France after World War I, where they had gained first-hand familiarity with the country house 



prototypes in Normandy and Brittany. Published photographic studies were also circulated to American 
architects who quickly adapted the style for residential homes. French Eclectic homes were usually: 

•  designed in brick or stone with steeped asymmetrical roofs,  
• had massive masonry chimneys, and  
• had a dominant tower bay and multi- paned casement windows.  

 

Page 15 - Featured Style  
Title: Craftsman 

Subtitle: 1900s – 1920s 

Description:  

The Craftsman Style derived from the Arts and Crafts Movement of the late 19th century. The 
Movement valued hand craftsmanship, natural materials, and simplicity in design and detailing that 
rejected Victorian era excesses and mass-production. Craftsman Style houses feature: 

•  a mix of wood clapboards, shingles, stucco and sometimes half-timbering, 
•  rough cuts and uneven application if stone or brick was used, for a more rustic look,  
•  low-sloped hipped or gable roofs with deep overhangs supported by wood brackets and knee-
braces,  
•   double hung or casement type windows with multi-paned or diamond-paned glass, and 
•   wide front porches supported by rustic brick or stone piers. 
 

The Craftsman Style was applied to common building types such as the Bungalow and Gable-Fronted 
houses. The style was popularized by national design plan books and magazines such as The Craftsman, 
published by Gustav Stickley between 1901 and 1916. Though high-style, expensive Craftsman homes 
are not uncommon, it was generally promoted as an affordable, middle-class style for Americans and 
was, ironically, mass-produced. 

Page 16 - Featured Style  
Title: Prairie 

Subtitle: 1900s – 1920s 

Description:  

The Prairie Style is largely derived from the Arts and Crafts Movement of the late 19th and early 20th 
Century, and largely practiced by prominent architect Frank Lloyd Wright and his contemporaries in Oak 
Park, Illinois. The Prairie Style was Wright’s own unique vision of the Arts and Crafts Movement and was 
suited to the open land and flat prairies of the Midwest. As such, the style emphasized horizontality 
with: 

•  low-slope hipped roofs,  
•  deep eave overhangs,  
•  horizontal bands of trim, and  
•  single-pane casements, often featuring art glass, and banded together in rows.  
 



Prairie houses are generally of lower overall height compared to Victorian houses, even when two 
stories tall, and emphasize the use of straightforward building materials of stucco and wood. Wood 
siding is often horizontal board and batten.  

After World War I, the style’s popularity declined but continued to influence mass-produced housing 
such as bungalows and American Foursquares.  Bungalow or Foursquare Prairie-styled houses typically 
feature: 

•  wide front porches,  
•  stucco exteriors with hipped roofs and deep eave overhangs,  
•  some horizontal trim, and  
•  bands of windows.  

 

Page 17 & 18 - Featured Style  
Title: Chicago Bungalow 

Subtitle: 1900s – 1920s 

Description:  

The Chicago Bungalow is a unique style of the bungalow house type that developed in Chicago and 
spread throughout the Great Lakes region. The style features all of the typical characteristics of a 
Bungalow house: 

•  one or one-and-one-half stories, 
•  low gable or hipped roof,  
•  front porch, and  
•  an efficient, compact floor plan.  
 

However, the Chicago Bungalow developed to suit the unique conditions found in the region, including 
weather and land costs. Chicago Bungalows are: 

•   rectangular in plan with the short end facing the street to allow construction on narrow lots, 
•  have a small, open entry porch with the rest of the house front enclosed as a sun-porch, and  
•  almost all are of brick construction, which was a requirement in the city.  

To save costs, the front sometimes featured nicer looking “face brick” while the sides and rear used 
cheaper “common brick.” Roofs are low hipped or gable roofs with modest overhangs. Roof dormers are 
customary, which allowed for usable space in the attic. Windows are typically double hung and often the 
front sun-porch windows have Prairie Style art glass.  

Chicago Bungalows were generally mass-produced for working-class families. As such, they had minimal 
ornamentation but sometimes had stone or terra cotta details at the entry or on the front. Some 
versions were designed for wealthier homeowners and were highly ornamented with expensive tile 
roofs and arched windows. The style developed in the housing boom after World War I and ended with 
the housing bust of the Depression. 

 

Page 19 - Featured Style  
Title: Spanish Revival 



Subtitle: 1920s – 1940s 

Description:  

The Spanish Revival Style was inspired by Spanish colonial architecture of the Southwest and Mexico and 
its distinguishing characteristics are: 

•  asymmetry,  
•  stucco exteriors, and  
•  red-tile roofs.  
 

Front porches are rare but many houses have a terrace or stoop and a small protective overhang. Side 
porches protected under arched arcades are not uncommon. Arched doors or windows and exposed 
wood beams and protruding “vigas” that appear to support the roof are also typical features. Fancier 
houses will have wrought iron railings, balconies and light fixtures and ornamentation such as twisted 
columns.  

Page 20 - Featured Style  
Title: Minimal Traditional 

Subtitle: 1930s – 1940s 

Description:  

The Minimal Traditional Style developed in the 1930s and was popular through the 1960s. This style 
accommodated an owner’s desire for a more traditional-looking home that was easier to build and cost 
less than a more highly-designed and ornamented Colonial Revival house. For these reasons, the style 
was quite popular during the Depression and in the post-World War II housing boom.  

The style is a simplification of the Colonial Revival. Minimal Traditional houses are typically: 

•   one and one-half stories, 
•   have hipped or gabled roofs with short overhangs, and 
•  the entry is often protected by a small porch, stoop, terrace or roof overhang.  
 

Exterior materials included brick, stone, wood clapboards, aluminum siding and asbestos siding. Two 
siding choices were often included to provide character to the home. Windows are sometimes flanked 
with shutters and it is common to find a picture or bay window in the living room.  

Page 21 - Featured Style  
Title: International Style 

Subtitle: 1930s – 1960s 

Description:  

The International Style evolved in the 1930s from Europe as a rejection of historic associations and 
revivals. The style often has: 

•   a concrete, stucco and brick as exterior,  
•  no applied ornamentation,  
•  flat roofs with parapets instead of overhangs, and 
•  no porches.  



 
In lieu of porches, cantilevered balconies with solid walls are often included, especially in multi-family 
buildings. Windows often have steel frames and are larger picture or casement windows. Commercial 
buildings in the International Style built after World War II often have glass curtain walls with steel or 
aluminum frames. The style became very popular in the Chicago region after Mies van der Rohe, its 
most famous exponent and practitioner of the style, emigrated to Chicago from Germany in 1938.  

Page 22 - Featured Style  
Title: Mid-Century Modern 

Subtitle: 1940s – 1960s 

Description:  

Mid-Century Modern is a more ornamented and visually-enriched version of the International Style. 
Though devoid of traditional ornament, the style does feature ornamental applications such as carved 
relief stone panels or wall panels of differing materials. The exterior materials include stone, brick, 
concrete block and sometimes wood clapboards or aluminum siding. Typically, several materials may be 
used in a typical Mid-Century Modern building. Long, narrow Roman-style brick, sometimes stacked in 
neat rows, is often the primary building material. 

Sometimes, concrete blocks are used as a low-relief feature or cut-out geometric shape. Roofs vary from 
low-sloped gable and hipped roofs to flat, but they often have deep, cantilevered overhangs. Windows 
are often framed in steel as casements or multi-pane picture windows that sometimes turn the corner. 
Glass block windows are common for entries and bathrooms. Porches are rare but a projecting canopy 
or roof overhang will often protect the entry.  

Page 23 - Featured Style  
Title: Late Modern Eclectic 

Subtitle: 1970s - Present 

Description:  

The Late Modern Eclectic Style developed in the 1970s as an alternative to Modernist buildings, but with 
greater detailing and ornamentation similar to the earlier Minimal Traditional Style.  It can be difficult to 
describe the characteristics of the style since by definition it is highly eclectic in nature. Typical exterior 
materials include brick, stone, clapboard siding, aluminum and vinyl. In most cases, two or more 
materials are combined to provide visual interest to the building’s elevation.  

There is rarely any distinct stylistic ornamentation to such homes, but shutters and Colonial-styled porch 
posts are common. The entry is usually protected by a portico and large, attached garages are the norm. 
The overall building massing is usually irregular and asymmetrical but may also be found in a Ranch or 
Split-Level form. The Late Modern Eclectic Style is often referred to as Neo-Eclectic or Postmodern. 

 

Page 24 - Featured Style  
Title: Neo Revival 

Subtitle: 1980s - Present 



Description:  

The Neo Revival Style is a latter-day revival of earlier architectural styles, Tudor Revival, French Eclectic, 
Queen Anne, Craftsman and Prairie styles. Neo-Revival homes will have many of the characteristics and 
features of the original style but are interpreted and constructed with modern materials and scale. The 
exteriors will range from brick, stone, stucco, synthetic stucco, vinyl siding or fiber cement siding 
depending on the original style’s material pallet. Roof forms will also vary depending on the style 
revived. In addition, windows usually do not closely match the openings and proportions of the original 
style. Ornamentation and detailing is often simplified and large attached garages are the norm. 

 

Page 25 – Vernacular Building Forms  
Title: Gable-Front and Gabled-Ell 

Subtitle: 1850s – 1920s 

Description:  

A Gable-Front Cottage or House was one of the more common vernacular building forms throughout the 
mid to late-1800s and features a dominant “open gable” elevation facing the street. The Gable-Front is 
also characterized as having a simple form and clean lines that do not distinguish between an upper or 
lower façade for both one-story cottages and two-story houses. The house form was often used for 
working and middle-class homes and may have Greek Revival, Italianate and Queen Anne detailing and 
ornamentation. The Gable-Ell cottage or house was also a common building type from the 1870s 
through the 1920s and featured dominant front gable with one or two short wing extensions on the rear 
elevation. Usually, an entrance porch would be on one side of the house along the street. Like the 
Gable-Front, the Gable-Ell may also have Queen Anne and other architectural stylistic characteristics.  

 

Page 26 – Vernacular Building Forms  
Title: Foursquare 

Subtitle: 1890s – 1920s 

Description:  

The Foursquare was a popular vernacular building form in nearly every part of the country from the 
1890s through to the 1920s. Sometimes called the “Classical Box” or “Prairie Box,” common 
characteristics of the Foursquare include: 

•   its square or rectangular floor plan;  
•  its medium pitched pyramid hip roof;  
•  one or more centrally placed dormers;  
•  full front porches, some open, some enclosed; and  
•  wood, stucco, and brick walls.   

 

Almost all Foursquares were two and-a-half stories in height. In Downers Grove, a majority of the 
Foursquares were designed with Prairie, Craftsman, or Colonial Revival features. Prairie Foursquares are 



often noted for their wide eaves.  Colonial Revival elements may include Palladian windows, pilasters as 
corner trim work, and porch columns topped with capitals. 

Page 27 – Vernacular Building Forms  
Title: Bungalow 

Subtitle: 1905 - 1930 

Description:  

As noted previously, the Bungalow, along with the Foursquare, was one of the dominant building forms 
in Downers Grove. The name “bungalow” is of a British importation, derived from the Hindi word 
“bangle,” meaning a low house with a porch. In the United States, bungalows have come to be known as 
one general residential building type even though they may be designed in different architectural styles. 
American bungalows are typically: 

•   one-and-one-half stories in height, 
•   have gently pitched gable or hip roof, and  
•  partial or full front porches.  
 

Bungalows designed in the Craftsman style may have wood clapboard siding and exposed roof rafters; 
those in the Prairie style may have wide eaves and stucco cladding. The Chicago Bungalow is entirely 
constructed in brick. 

 

Page 28 – Vernacular Building Forms  
Title: Ranch 

Subtitle: 1930s – 1970s 

Description:  

The modern Ranch house has its predecessors in the vernacular frontier architecture of California and 
the Southwest where the traditional one-story Spanish settlement dwellings took root. Today, the Ranch 
home is often associated with the new suburban subdivisions that were developed all around the 
country after World War II.  A vast majority of the Ranch homes in Downers Grove exhibit Mid-Century 
Modern design characteristics, although some may have features of other architectural styles. 

 

Page 29 – Vernacular Building Forms  
Title: Split Level 

Subtitle: 1950s – 1970s 

Description:  



The Split Level is a variant of the Ranch house in which a two-story wing is intercepted at mid-height by 
the main one-story wing, thus providing three levels of floor space in the house. 
 
Second to last page - Resources 
 

To learn more about the historic resources in Downers Grove, the Village has created a new Historic 
Resource Application (maps.downers.us). Enter an address to find out if the property was identified in 
three previous surveys. 

 The early 1970s State of Illinois Historic Architectural and Archaeology Resources Geographic 
Information System (HAARGIS) survey. 

 The 2009 Village Historic Preservation Plan identifies HAARGIS buildings, designated Downers 
Grove Historical Society properties, and Sears Homes. 

 The 2013 Village Historic Building Survey surveyed 865 properties in Denburn Woods, Shady 
Lane Estates, E.H. Prince Subdivision and Maple Avenue/Main Street corridor 

The Village has mapped the properties identified in these documents on this map to help property 
owners determine if their home is a potential Historic Landmark. 

Other local resources include: 

The Downers Grove Historical Society - http://downersgrovehistory.org/ 

The Downers Grove Museum - http://www.dgparks.org/places-to-go/the-museum 

 

 

Back Page (replicate back of brochure 1) 
 

Preserving your property as a historic landmark is easier than ever and there’s no cost, so call the Village 
or visit us on the web and let us help landmark your historic home today. 

630.434.5515 

www.downers.us/govt/historic-preservation 

 

http://vdg.maps.arcgis.com/home/index.html
http://vdg.maps.arcgis.com/home/index.html
http://www.downers.us/public/docs/historic_preservation/Historic_Preservation_Plan.pdf
http://www.downers.us/public/docs/historic_preservation/DownersGroveSurveyReport-112513.pdf
http://downersgrovehistory.org/
http://www.dgparks.org/places-to-go/the-museum
tel:630.434.5515
http://www.downers.us/


  

 

Two State Disclaimers:  

This program receives Federal financial assistance for identification and protection of historic properties 
under Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, and the Age 
Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended. The U.S. Department of the Interior prohibits discrimination on 
the basis of race, color, national origin, or disability or age in its federally assisted programs. If you 
believe you have been discriminated against in any program, activity, or facility as described above, or if 
you desire further information, please write to: 
  
            Office for Equal Opportunity                                            Equal Employment Opportunity Officer 
            National Park Service                               or                   Illinois Historic Preservation Agency 
            P.O. Box 37127                                                              One Old State Capitol Plaza 
            Washington, DC 20013-7127                                           Springfield, IL 62701 
 

The activity, which is the subject of the brochure, has been financed in part with federal funds from the 
Department of the lnterior administered by the Illinois Historic Preservation Agency. However, the 
contents and opinions do not necessarily reflect the views or policies of the Department of the Interior 
or the Illinois Historic Preservation Agency, nor does the mention of trade names or commercial 
products constitute endorsement or recommendation by the Department of the Interior or the Illinois 
Historic Preservation Agency. 
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